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	 Texas communities can address the overweight and 
obesity impact on cancer by making it easier for people 
to choose healthy food options and building communities 
that make it safer and easier to be physically active where 
they live, work, learn and play.21 Some specific strategies 
that have been identified to address these risk factors 
include: comprehensive telehealth and multi-component 
technology interventions, multi-component interventions to 
increase healthy options for food and beverages in schools, 
reducing screen time among children, interventions that 
include activity monitors, built environment that combines 
transportation system and land use/environmental design, 
family-based physical activity interventions and worksite  
programs.25

	 Some infectious diseases have been associated with cer-
tain types of cancer. For example, high-risk types of human 
papillomavirus (HPV) cause almost all cervical cancers and 
most anal cancers. Many other cancers, including oropha-
ryngeal, vaginal, vulvar and penile cancers, are linked to 
high-risk HPV infections.26 Vaccines may help reduce can-
cer risk associated with infectious disease. The HPV vaccine 
has been proven to prevent most cervical cancers and many 
cases of oral and anal cancer.22 

	 The Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices has 
issued new recommendations for the HPV vaccine. A two-
dose series is now recommended for girls and boys who begin 
the vaccination series between ages 9 and 14 years. The 
three doses continue to be recommended for individuals who 
begin the vaccination series at ages 15 through 26 years.28

	 In 2016, 39.7% of females and 26.5% of males in Texas are 
up-to-date with HPV vaccination series. In the U.S., 49.5% 
of females and 37.5% of males are up-to-date with the HPV 
vaccination series.29

	 Texas has the highest rates of liver cancer in the U.S.30 
From 1995 to 2015, the incidence rate of liver cancer in Texas 
men doubled from 7.8 to 17.2 per 100,000.6 Chronic Hepatitis 
B (HBV) and Hepatitis C (HCV) infections are the most com-
mon risk factor for liver cancer.31 Approximately 15% of liver 
cancers are associated with Hepatitis B and 50% are asso-
ciated with Hepatitis C.32 Since the 1980s, infants in the U.S. 
are routinely vaccinated against HBV. Adults who have not 
been vaccinated against HBV and are at high risk for HBV 
infection (particularly health care workers and other profes-
sionals who have contact with blood) are recommended to get 
the HBV vaccine.26 

Source: GW Cancer Center Cancer Control Tap:  
HPV Cancer and Prevention Profiles 2017. 27





https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-11/documents/nrap_guide_2015_final.pdf




https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/lung/pdf/guidelines.pdf
https://www.cancer.org/cancer/colon-rectal-cancer/detection-diagnosis-staging/acs-recommendations.html


https://www.tsgc.org/




https://www.asco.org/practice-guidelines/cancer-care-initiatives/prevention-survivorship/survivorship/survivorship
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	 Cancer survivors and their families often experience finan-
cial difficulties because of a cancer diagnosis. The following 
organizations provide support and assistance in navigat-
ing resources for cancer survivors: The Patient Advocate 
Foundation and the American Cancer Society.67,68

	 Research shows that lung cancer survivors experience 
stigma more than patients with other types of cancers, partic-
ularly among smokers compared to nonsmokers. Lung can-
cer survivors may feel judged or discriminated against based 
on their diagnosis.69 Although lung cancer has the highest 
rates of death among men and women in both Texas and the 
United States (more than colorectal, breast and prostate can-
cer combined), awareness and resources for lung cancer are 
lower than other types of cancer. While the tobacco control 
movement has helped to reduce the social acceptability of 
smoking, it has increased the stigma for smokers.69 Some of 
the consequences of lung cancer stigma include:69

•	Avoiding or delaying treatment or seeking a second 
opinion

•	 Increased lung-cancer related distress
•	Relationship conflict
•	Unwillingness to disclose that the survivor has lung 

cancer
•	Less social support
•	Lower healthcare quality

	 Organizations such as the American Lung Association and 
the Lung Cancer Alliance have resources to help address 
stigma. These and other organizations are encouraging the 
interventions to reduce lung cancer stigma and increase 
knowledge, empathy and hope. One example of a media 
campaign from the Lung Cancer Alliance is known as: “No 
one deserves to die”. 
	 As the number of cancer survivors in Texas continues to 
grow, members of the public health community, including 
advocates, practitioners, health plan administrators, research-
ers, service organizations, and elected officials must be pre-
pared to meet the unique and often complex challenges that 
survivors face during and after treatment. From providing 
access to a comprehensive survivorship care plan that can 
help monitor and plan care, to enacting policies that will sup-
port survivors in the workplace and provide appropriate health 
insurance coverage, as well as finding ways to support those 
with metastatic cancer and reduce stigma related to lung can-
cer, Texas has many opportunities to improve the health and 
well-being of cancer survivors.

http://www.patientadvocate.org/NURD/index2.php?application=financial
http://www.patientadvocate.org/NURD/index2.php?application=financial
https://www.cancer.org/treatment/finding-and-paying-for-treatment/understanding-health-insurance/if-you-have-trouble-paying-a-bill/programs-and-resources-to-help-with-cancer-related-expenses.html
http://www.lung.org/assets/documents/research/addressing-the-stigma-of-lung-cancer.pdf
https://lungcanceralliance.org/
http://www.noonedeservestodie.org/
http://www.noonedeservestodie.org/
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Infrastructure
Implementing a comprehensive cancer control plan requires focus on research and 
all areas of cancer prevention including preventing cancer from occurring to detect-
ing it early and preventing future cancers in cancer survivors. Due to advances 
in technology, treatment, data collection and analysis, quality care standards and 
prevention research, there are proven strategies and interventions that can reduce 
the burden of cancer. However, implementing such strategies in a systematic and 
culturally relevant way – in a state with 254 counties and a diverse population that 
exceeds 28 million people – presents a unique set of challenges that must be 
addressed to make a significant impact on the cancer burden in Texas. 
	 Most Texas counties are designated as medically underserved areas and health 
professional shortage areas.70 This highlights two critical and inseparable needs for 
cancer control: increased numbers and distribution of public health services, and 
increased numbers and distribution of well-trained health professionals. 
	  A survey by the North Texas Regional Extension Center lists some factors 
regarding the physician workforce in Texas that may affect cancer prevention and 
control.71

•	Texas ranks 47th in the nation in active primary care physicians per 100,000 
population

•	35 Texas counties have no physicians of any specialty (total population of 
115,826)

•	80 Texas counties have five physicians or less (total population of 782,790)
•	147 Texas counties have no obstetrician/gynecologist (total population of 

1,940,722)
•	158 Texas counties have no general surgeon (total population of 2,066,766)
•	57% of the workforce is in the five most populated counties in Texas while 

44% of the population lives in these counties.
•	Medicare and Medicaid acceptance rates are relatively low among Texas 

physicians. 35% do not accept Medicaid and 20% do not accept Medicare.  
In the U.S. 18% do not accept Medicaid and 13% do not accept Medicare.

Although the registered nurse (RN) and licensed physician assistant (PA) workforces 
have increased dramatically since 2005, there is still a need for more racial and 
ethnic diversity in these professions. Hispanics comprise almost 40% of the Texas 
population but only 14.1% of the RN workforce and 16.3% of the PA workforce.72

Texas Cancer Plan
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Health Professional Shortage Areas in Texas (HPSA)73

HPSA Shortage 
Category

Total HPSA  
designations

Percent  
of need met

Practitioners needed  
to remove designation

Primary Care 432 66.40% 587

Mental Health 412 45.25% 271

Dental 306 61.08% 402

Texas Medically Underserved Areas (MUA)  
and Populations (MUP)

Data Source: U.S. Health Resources and Services Administration Data Warehouse, October 2017 70
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Disparities and Priority Populations
Defining the exact causes of cancer disparities is complex. The factors that con-
tribute to disparities are often interrelated issues such as socioeconomic status, 
culture, and health system factors. According to the ACS, disparities predominantly 
occur from inequities in work, wealth, income, education, housing, and overall stan-
dard of living, as well as social barriers to accessing high-quality cancer prevention, 
control, and treatment services.74 Therefore, it is imperative that planners, policy 
makers, providers, advocates, and others consider these factors in their efforts to 
lessen the burden of cancer in Texas.
	 During 2010-2014, Texas had a lower cancer incidence rate for eight of the top 
10 cancers compared to the U.S. rate.75 The only exceptions are leukemias and 
kidney and renal pelvis cancers. For leukemias, the Texas and U.S. rates were the 
same (13.8 per 100,000 population). However, for kidney and renal cancers, the 
Texas incidence rate was higher than the U.S. (18.3 vs 16.1 per 100,000 popula-
tion)75 Texas had a lower mortality rate for six of the 10 top cancers compared to 
the U.S. rate. The exceptions were colorectal, leukemias, liver and kidney and renal 
cancers. Colorectal cancers and leukemias had the same mortality rate as the U.S. 
(14.7 and 6.8 per 100,000 population, respectively). Liver and kidney and renal 
pelvis cancer mortality rates were higher than the U.S. rate (8.0 vs 6.3 per 100,000 
population for liver cancers and 4.5 vs 3.9 per 100,000 population for kidney and 
renal pelvis cancers).75

Race/Ethnicity
Texas is a diverse state, with a racial/ethnic demographic breakdown in 2016 of 
42.6% non-Hispanic White, 39.1% Hispanic or Latino, 12.6% African American, and 
4.8% Asian.76 Texas has led the U.S. in population growth since 2006 and is one 
of only four states in the U.S. that is a “majority-minority” where the non-Hispanic 
white population is less than 50%.77 The Hispanic population in Texas is the second 
largest in the nation, with about 39% of Texas residents reporting Hispanic ethnicity. 
The Hispanic or Latino population of Texas also includes immigrants from Mexico, 
Central America, and South America, as well as Tejanos.76 

	 Cancer incidence and mortality rates vary by race and ethnicity. Overall, blacks 
in Texas have cancer incidence and mortality rates that exceed those of whites 
and other racial/ethnic groups.6 Although white women have historically had higher 
breast cancer incidence rates than black women, the two rates converged recently 
and have become virtually the same.78 Even though incidence rates are now simi-
lar, blacks still have a 42% higher mortality rate from breast cancer and the median 
age of both diagnosis and death is younger than non-Hispanic white women.78 
	 Liver cancer incidence rates are about three times higher in men than in women. 
From 1995 to 2015 the incidence rate of liver cancer in Texas men doubled from 7.8 
to 17.2 per 100,000 population.6 Hispanics have the highest liver cancer incidence 
and mortality compared to any other ethnic group.31

	 Some of the challenges related to access to care facing the Hispanic population 

Texas Cancer Plan
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in Texas are influenced by socioeconomic factors such as 
education, income and insurance status. Other barriers to 
care arise from geographic location (particularly for those 
who live in border, rural or frontier counties) as well as 
immigrant status, whether one is employed in seasonal work 
and one’s level of English language fluency.
	 More information on cancer incidence and mortality by 
county, race, and type of cancer can be found at the Texas 
Cancer Registry (TCR) website.6

Income/Uninsured populations
Low-income populations face financial barriers to access-
ing cancer prevention and treatment resources. During  
2016, 16.7% of the people in Texas were below pov-
erty level, compared to the national rate of 15.1%.79 
The median household income in Texas in 2016 was 
$54,727.79 Approximately 21% of blacks, 20% of 
Hispanics and 8% of non-Hispanic whites live in poverty  
in Texas.80

	 The uninsured rate has declined from 27% in 2007 to 
16.6% in 2016; however, Texas continues to have the highest 
uninsured rate in the nation. The uninsured rate in Texas is 
almost twice as high as the national average of 8.8%.81 There 
are also racial differences in uninsured status. According to 
the Texas BRFSS survey for 2016, Hispanics ages 18 and 
older are more likely to report being without health insurance 
(34.7%) when compared to either non-Hispanic whites (7.5%) 
or blacks (11.8%).14 

Education
Populations with lower education bear a greater share of the 
cancer burden. As of 2016, 17.7% of the population in Texas 
has less than a high school education compared to 13% of 
the U.S.79

For example, a disparity in obesity prevalence remains 
between non-Hispanic whites and minority populations, as 
well as among populations with lower SES and lower levels 
of educational attainment. For instance, nearly 39% of Texans 
with less than a high school education were obese in 2013, 
compared with 23% of college graduates.82

Health Literacy
Lack of proficiency in the English language can be a sig-
nificant barrier to health care utilization and adherence. In 
addition, overall health literacy also plays a pivotal role in the 
effort to improve the quality of life. Health literacy includes the 
ability to read, understand, and take action on health-related 
information.74 People with low health literacy are more likely to 
report poorer health and are less likely to use preventive ser-
vices, thus putting them at an increased risk of late-stage can-
cer diagnosis, hospitalization, and higher healthcare costs. 
Approximately 14% of U.S. adults over the age of 16 had a 
below basic level of health literacy, the majority of whom did 
not graduate high school.74 Those with less than a high school 
education, racial and ethnic minorities, older populations and 
populations with disabilities have a higher rate of “below basic 
literacy level” than other populations.74

Data Source: United States Census Bureau Quick Facts, Texas76











https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/cancer












https://ephtracking.cdc.gov/showCancerEnv
https://ephtracking.cdc.gov/showCancerEnv












https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/Page/Document/UpdateSummaryFinal/lung-cancer-screening
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APPENDICES APPENDIX 2

RESOURCES
v	Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care: www.aaahc.org 
v	Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices: www.cdc.gov/vaccines/acip/index.html 
v	American Academy of Pediatrics: www.aap.org
v	American Association of Cancer Research: www.aacr.org/Pages/Home.aspx 
v	American Cancer Society: www.cancer.org
v	American College of Surgeons Commission on Cancer: www.facs.org/quality-programs/cancer/coc/
v	American Lung Association: www.lung.org
v	Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System: www.cdc.gov/brfss/
v	American Society of Clinical Oncology: www.asco.org
v	Cancer Alliance of Texas: www.dshs.texas.gov/tcccp/CancerAllianceofTexas.shtm 
v	Cancer Control P.L.A.N.E.T.: https://cancercontrolplanet.cancer.gov
v	Cancer Moonshot℠ Blue Ribbon Panel: www.cancer.gov/research/key-initiatives/moonshot-cancer-initiative/ 

blue-ribbon-panel
v	Cancer Prevention and Research Institute of Texas: www.cprit.texas.gov
v	Center to Advance Palliative Care: www.capc.org
v	Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: www.cdc.gov
v	CEO Cancer Gold Standard™: www.cancergoldstandard.org
v	Children’s Oncology Group: www.childrensoncologygroup.org
v	Guide to Community Preventive Services: www.thecommunityguide.org
v	Health Resources and Services Administration Medically Underserved Areas: https://datawarehouse.hrsa.gov
v	Healthy People 2020: www.cdc.gov/nchs/healthy_people/hp2020.htm
v	ImmTrac2 – Texas Immunization Registry: https://immtrac.dshs.texas.gov
v	Institute of Medicine Survivorship Care: www.nationalacademies.org/hmd/Reports/2005/From-Cancer-Patient-to-

Cancer-Survivor-Lost-in-Transition.aspx 
v	The Joint Commission: www.jointcommission.org
v	Lung Cancer Alliance: https://lungcanceralliance.org
v	National Cancer Institute: www.cancer.gov
v	National Cancer Institute Research Tested Intervention Programs: https://rtips.cancer.gov/rtips/
v	National Comprehensive Cancer Control Program: www.cdc.gov/cancer/ncccp/
v	National Comprehensive Cancer Network: www.nccn.org
v	National Hospice and Palliative Care Organization: www.nhpco.org
v	National Immunization Survey – Teen: www.cdc.gov/nchs/nis/data_files_teen.htm
v	National Radon Action Plan: www.epa.gov/radon/national-radon-action-plan-strategy-saving-lives
v	NCI-Designated Cancer Centers: www.cancer.gov/research/nci-role/cancer-centers
v	North American Association of Central Cancer Registries: www.naaccr.org
v	Patient Advocate Foundation: www.patientadvocate.org
v	The Perryman Group: www.cprit.state.tx.us/images/uploads/perryman_cprit_impact_2017.pdf
v	Psychosocial Standards of Care Project for Childhood Cancer: www.mattiemiracle.com/standards

http://www.aaahc.org/
https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/acip/index.html
https://www.aap.org/
http://www.aacr.org/Pages/Home.aspx
https://www.cancer.org/
https://www.facs.org/quality-programs/cancer/coc/
http://www.lung.org/
https://www.cdc.gov/brfss/
https://www.asco.org/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/tcccp/CancerAllianceofTexas.shtm
https://cancercontrolplanet.cancer.gov/
https://www.cancer.gov/research/key-initiatives/moonshot-cancer-initiative/blue-ribbon-panel
https://www.cancer.gov/research/key-initiatives/moonshot-cancer-initiative/blue-ribbon-panel
http://www.cprit.texas.gov/
https://www.capc.org/
https://www.cdc.gov/
https://www.cancergoldstandard.org/
https://www.childrensoncologygroup.org/
https://www.thecommunityguide.org/
https://datawarehouse.hrsa.gov/
https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/healthy_people/hp2020.htm
https://immtrac.dshs.texas.gov/
http://www.nationalacademies.org/hmd/Reports/2005/From-Cancer-Patient-to-Cancer-Survivor-Lost-in-Transition.aspx
http://www.nationalacademies.org/hmd/Reports/2005/From-Cancer-Patient-to-Cancer-Survivor-Lost-in-Transition.aspx
https://www.jointcommission.org/
https://lungcanceralliance.org/
https://www.cancer.gov/
https://rtips.cancer.gov/rtips/
https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/ncccp/
https://www.nccn.org/
https://www.nhpco.org/
https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nis/data_files_teen.htm
https://www.epa.gov/radon/national-radon-action-plan-strategy-saving-lives
https://www.cancer.gov/research/nci-role/cancer-centers
https://www.naaccr.org/
http://www.patientadvocate.org/
http://www.cprit.state.tx.us/images/uploads/perryman_cprit_impact_2017.pdf
http://www.mattiemiracle.com/standards
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v	Smoke-free Texas: www.smokefreetexas.org
v	State Office of Rural Health: www.texasagriculture.gov/GrantsServices/RuralEconomicDevelopment/ 

StateOfficeofRuralHealth.aspx
v	Texas Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System: www.dshs.texas.gov/chs/brfss/
v	Texas Cancer Registry: www.dshs.texas.gov/tcr/
v	Texas Department of State Health Services: www.dshs.texas.gov
v	Texas Regional Extension Center Resource Center: www.texmed.org/hitrec/
v	Texas Primary Care Office: www.dshs.texas.gov/chpr/default.shtm
v	Texas Society of Genetic Counselors: www.tsgc.org
v	Texas Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance System:www.dshs.texas.gov/chs/yrbs/
v	U.S. National Institutes of Health – Clinical Trials: https://clinicaltrials.gov
v	U.S. Preventive Services Task Force: www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org
v	University of Texas MD Anderson Cancer Center: www.mdanderson.org

http://www.smokefreetexas.org/
http://www.texasagriculture.gov/GrantsServices/RuralEconomicDevelopment/StateOfficeofRuralHealth.aspx
http://www.dshs.texas.gov/chs/brfss/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/tcr/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/
https://www.texmed.org/hitrec/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/chpr/default.shtm
https://www.tsgc.org/
http://www.dshs.texas.gov/chs/yrbs/
https://clinicaltrials.gov/
http://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/
https://www.mdanderson.org/
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Goal Objective Metric
Baseline &  

Data Source

Recommended 
Target (2023) 

and % Change 
from Baseline

1.0 
Eliminate tobacco 
use to reduce new 
cases and deaths 
from tobacco-related 
cancers

1.1	 Decrease the percent
age of youth who use 
tobacco products

% of students who are current 
smokers

7.4% 
(YRBSS, 2017)

6% 
Δ 19%

% of students who are current 
electronic vapor product users

10.3%
(YRBSS, 2017)

8%
Δ 22%

1.2	 Decrease the percent
age of adults who use 
tobacco products

% of adults who are current 
smokers

14.3%
(BRFSS, 2016)

11% 
Δ 23%

% of adults who are current 
e-cigarette users

4.7%
(BRFSS, 2016)

3%
Δ 36%

1.3	 Reduce exposure to 
secondhand smoke

% of Texans covered by 
comprehensive smoke-free 
workplace, restaurant and bar laws

43.5% of state 
population with 
100% smoke-
free workplace, 
restaurant and bar 
laws (NCI, State 
Cancer Profiles, 
2018)

100% of Texans 
covered by 
comprehensive 
workplace, 
restaurant and bar 
smoke-free laws

2.0 
Increase adoption of 
healthy behaviors to 
reduce new cases 
and deaths from 
cancers related to 
nutrition, physical 
activity and obesity

2.1	 Increase the percent
age of youth and adults 
who are at a healthy weight

% of high school students who are 
at a healthy weight

63.4%
(YRBSS, 2017)

75%
Δ 18%

% of adults who are at a healthy 
weight (BMI 18.5 to <25)

29.7%
(BRFSS, 2016)

36%
Δ 21%

2.2	 Increase the percent
age of youth and adults 
who engage in evidence-
based physical activity 
guidelines

% of high school students who are 
physically active 60 minutes or 
more on 5 or more days per week

42.9%
(YRBSS, 2017)

54%
Δ 26%

% of adults who have engaged in 
leisure time physical activity in the 
past month

74.8%
(BRFSS, 2016)

82%
Δ 10%

2.3	 Increase the percent
age of youth and adults 
who follow evidence-based 
nutrition guidelines

% of youth who eat at least  
5 fruits and/or vegetables  
per day

17.3%
(YRBSS, 2017)

26%
Δ 50%

% of adults who eat at least  
5 fruits and/or vegetables  
per day

17.2%
(BRFSS, 2016)

30%
Δ 74%

3.0 
Increase skin 
protection behaviors 
to reduce new cases 
and deaths from 
melanoma

3.1	 Promote skin cancer 
prevention behavior

Age-adjusted incidence rate of 
melanoma (per 100,000)

13.0 per 100,000 
(TCR, 2015)

11.7 per 100,000 
Δ 10%

3.2	 Reduce the mortality 
from melanoma

Age-adjusted mortality rate of 
melanoma (per 100,000)

2.0 per 100,000 
(TCR, 2015)

1.5 per 100,000 
Δ 25%

Note: Goals 4, 10, 11, 15, and 16 are not represented in the Measures table because no data is available to determine a 
baseline and target.
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Goal Objective Metric
Baseline &  

Data Source

Recommended 
Target (2023) 

and % Change 
from Baseline

5.0 
Increase vaccination  
rates for vaccines 
shown to reduce the 
risk of cancer

5.1	 Increase the percent
age of youth and young 
adults who have completed 
the recommended HPV 
vaccine series according to 
national guidelines

% of females age 13-17 who are 
up-to-date with HPV vaccination 
series

39.7%
(NIS-Teen, 2016) 

60% 
Δ 51% 

% of males age 13-17 who are 
up-to-date with HPV vaccination 
series

26.5%
(NIS-Teen, 2016)

45%
Δ 70%

5.2	 Increase the percent
age of youth and adults 
who have completed the 
recommended Hepatitis B 
vaccine series according to 
national guidelines

% of adolescents age 13-17 years 
who completed ≥ 3 doses of 
Hepatitis B vaccine

84.5% 
(NIS Teen, 2016) 

93%
Δ 10% 

% of adults who completed ≥ 3 
doses of Hepatitis B vaccine

49.5%
(BRFSS, 2016)

55%
Δ 11%

6.0 
Increase screening 
and early detection 
to increase the 
number of cancers 
diagnosed at an 
early stage and 
reduce deaths from 
breast cancer

6.1	 Increase the rate of 
women who receive breast 
cancer screening according 
to national guidelines

% of women age 50-74 years who 
have had a mammogram within 
the past two years

73.1%
(BRFSS, 2016) 

81%
Δ 10% 

6.2	 Reduce the rate of 
breast cancer at late stage

Age-adjusted incidence rate of 
female breast cancer at late stage 
(regional and distant) (per 100,000)

34.3 per 100,000
(BRFSS, 2016) 

31 per 100,000
Δ 10% 

Age-adjusted mortality rate, female 
breast cancer (per 100,000)

19.6 per 100,000 
(TCR, 2015)

17 per 100,000
Δ 13%

7.0
Increase screening 
and early detection 
to reduce the 
number of new 
cases and deaths 
from cervical cancer

7.1	 Increase the percent
age of women who receive 
cervical cancer screening 
according to national 
guidelines

% of women age 21-65 years who 
had a Pap test within the last three 
years 

75.0%
(BRFSS, 2016) 
 

85%
Δ 13% 
 

7.2	 Reduce the rate of 
invasive cervical cancer

Age-adjusted incidence rate of 
cervical cancer at invasive stage 
(local, regional and distant)  
(per 100,000)

9.1 per 100,000
(TCR, 2015) 
 

7.0 per 100,000
Δ 23% 
 

Age-adjusted mortality rate, 
cervical cancer (per 100,000)

2.9 per 100,000
(TCR, 2015)

2.0 per 100,000
Δ 31%

8.0
Increase screening 
and early detection 
to reduce the 
number of new 
cases and deaths 
from colorectal 
cancer

8.1	 Increase the percent
age of adults who receive 
colorectal cancer screening 
according to national 
guidelines

% of adults, ages 50-75, who 
have fully met the USPSTF 
recommendation

60.1%
(BRFSS, 2016)

80%
Δ 33% 

8.2	 Reduce rate of 
invasive colorectal cancer

Age-adjusted incidence rate of 
colorectal cancer at invasive stage 
(local, regional and distant)  
(per 100,000)

37.4 per 100,000
(TCR, 2008)

27 per 100,000
Δ 28%

Age-adjusted mortality rate, 
colorectal cancer (per 100,000)

15.8 per 100,000
(TCR, 2008)

12 per 100,000
Δ 24%
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Goal Objective Metric
Baseline &  

Data Source

Recommended 
Target (2023) 

and % Change 
from Baseline

9.0
Increase screening 
and early detection 
among Texans at 
high risk for lung 
cancer to increase 
the number of 
cancers diagnosed 
at an early stage 
and reduce deaths 
from lung cancer

9.1	 Increase lung cancer 
screening of adults 
according to national 
guidelines

Data not available 
to determine a 
baseline and target

9.2	 Reduce the rate of 
lung cancer at late stage 
(regional and distant)

Age-adjusted incidence rate of 
lung cancer at late stage (regional 
and distant) (per 100,000)

34.9 per 100,000
(TCR, 2014)

28 per 100,000
Δ 20%

Age-adjusted mortality rate, lung 
cancer (per 100,000)

35.1 per 100,000
(TCR, 2015)

32 per 100,000
Δ 9%

12.0
Increase timely 
access to quality 
cancer diagnostic, 
treatment, and 
palliation services 
for all Texans

12.1	Promote efforts aimed 
at increasing the optimal 
care of cancer patients

Number of CoC accredited 
facilities

73
(American College 
of Surgeons, 
2018) 

84

12.2	Promote timely and 
appropriate referral to 
palliative care programs in 
Texas hospitals

Palliative Care Scorecard Grade of C on a 
scale of A – F
(Center to 
Advance Palliative 
Care, 2015)

Grade of A

12.3	Promote appropriate 
pain and symptom 
management among 
cancer survivors

Data not available 
to determine a 
baseline and target

12.4	Promote timely access 
to and utilization of care for 
individuals who are under-
insured or uninsured, or 
do not qualify for financial 
assistance programs

Data not available 
to determine a 
baseline and target

13.0
Promote overall 
health and well-
being of people 
affected by cancer

13.1	Promote quality follow-
up care and post-treatment 
support programs for 
cancer survivors

Percentage of cancer survivors 
were diagnosed 5 or more years 
ago

67%
(TCR, 2018)

75%
Δ 12%

13.2	Increase percentage 
of cancer survivors with 
a written summary of 
treatment and care plan

Data not available 
to determine a 
baseline and target

MEASURES cont.
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Goal Objective Metric
Baseline &  

Data Source

Recommended 
Target (2023) 

and % Change 
from Baseline

14.0
Strengthen the 
public health and 
clinical health 
care system 
infrastructure by 
supporting the 
delivery of the 
most appropriate 
evidence-based 
cancer prevention 
interventions and 
clinical care services

14.1 Increase the number 
of quality, accessible 
facilities and well-trained 
professionals in medically 
underserved areas

Number of Medically Underserved 
Area counties (full and partial)

235 counties are 
full/partial MUA
(HRSA, 2016)

211 counties
Δ 10%

14.2 Maintain and enhance 
high-quality cancer data 
provided by the Texas 
Cancer Registry

Type and level of cancer registry 
certification

NAACCR Gold 
Certification

NCI SEER Registry

14.3 Enhance and protect 
existing cancer data 
systems, including the 
Texas Cancer Registry, 
BRFSS and YRBSS, 
to monitor and support 
outcome-driven cancer 
research, prevention and 
control

Data not available 
to determine a 
baseline and 
target

MEASURES cont.
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